TINTAGEL PARISH COUNCIL



'Tintagel's Great Seal'

Clerk: Carolyn Y. May

Phone: 01726 210139

E-mail: clerk@tintagelparishcouncil.gov.uk

Website: www.tintagelparishcouncil.gov.uk

A2 Victoria Advent House Station Approach

Roche

Cornwall

PL26 8LG

4th June 2020

Minutes of the Virtual Meeting of Tintagel Parish Council Wednesday 3rd June 2020

Present: Cllr Flower (Chairman), Cllr Brooks, Cllr Harper, Cllr Pearse, Cllr Callcut, Cllr Tremain, Cllr Coshall

Members of the Public: three

Prior to the commencement of the meeting, the Clerk read out the notice relating to the recording/ filming of the meeting and advised all participants that the meeting would be recorded by the Clerk.

Apologies: None

Declarations of Interest: None

Invitation to members of the public to speak prior to the meeting:

No requests had been received, to address the Parish Council

AGENDA

MINUTES

Minute 07 – 2020/21

The Minutes from the Parish Council Meeting, held on the 13th May 2020 were considered by Members, on a page by page basis. No issues were raised in relation to the same.

It was **proposed** by Cllr. Pearse **seconded** by Cllr. Brooks and RESOLVED that the minutes be signed as a true record of the meeting. Unanimous. **Carried**.

PLANNING MATTERS

Minute 08 – 2020/21

PA20/04001 - Members were of the opinion that the proposal amounted to the over-development of the area. It was **proposed** by Cllr Brooks, **seconded** by Cllr Flower and RESOLVED, that the Parish Council would **object** to the application. Unanimous. **Carried**.

Minute 09 – 2020/21

PA20/00920/PREAPP - It was **proposed** by Cllr Brooks, **seconded** by Cllr Flower and RESOLVED, that the Parish Council would **not comment** the application. Unanimous. **Carried**.

Minute 010 – 2020/21

PA20/04009 - It was **proposed** by Cllr Brooks, **seconded** by Cllr Pearse and RESOLVED, that the Parish Council would **not object** to the application. Unanimous. **Carried.**

Minute 11 – 2020/21

PA20/04094 - It was **proposed** by Cllr Brooks, **seconded** by Cllr Flower and RESOLVED, that the Parish Council would **not comment** the application. Unanimous. **Carried**.

Minute 12-2020/21

PA20/03814 - It was **proposed** by Cllr Pearse, **seconded** by Cllr Brooks and RESOLVED, that the Parish Council would **not object** to the application, on the condition that patrons of the facility were not permitted to park on the main road. Unanimous. **Carried.**

Minute 13-2020/21

PA20/03842 - Members considered the request from the 'Friends of Pendower Beach' and the groups' objection to the proposed development. Cllr Flower stated that our own area lies within an ANOB and that failure to oppose such development (which flies in the face of the ANOB purpose) could create a precedent for all ANOB areas, resulting in wholesale development of the same.

It was **proposed** by Cllr Brooks, **seconded** by Cllr Flower and RESOLVED, that the Parish Council would support the request of the Friends of Pendower Beach, and **object** to the application. Unanimous. **Carried.**

PLANNING DECISIONS - Noted

FINANCE

Accounts Payable – Appendix C

Minute 14-2020/21

Members considered the schedule of payments to be made.

It was proposed by Cllr Brooks, seconded by Cllr Flower and RESOLVED that the schedule of accounts, at Appendix C, would be accepted. Unanimous. **Carried.**

<u>19.22 hrs – Cllr Coshall joined the meeting.</u>

NEW MEMBER – Cllr Flower welcomed Cllr Coshall, as a Member of the Parish Council.

TINTAGEL VISITOR CENTRE

Following on from the TVC discussion of the 13th May, Cllr Brookes addressed the meeting in relation to the comments and observations received.

Cllr Brooks advised the meeting that, since 2017, the TVC had sustained losses of £47,648. He added that figures prior to the period reported on had not been available to provide evidence of other gains/ losses. He stated that the losses amounted to a loss of public monies and stressed that the situation could not continue.

When the facility had been purchased initially, it had been clearly stated that there was a requirement to run the same for a period of three years – as a visitor centre. Thereafter, in the event that the facility did not 'pay its way', then the building could be disposed of. There has never been a need for the facility to make a profit, only cover its costs. That was clearly not happening.

Cllr Brooks added that attempts had been made to update the building and the stock, but current circumstances and the lack of footfall have thwarted the efforts to improve performance. He stated that the time has now come to consider the future of the facility.

Cllr Brooks advised the Meeting that the matter had been considered at the Precept Setting meeting two years ago and that it had been agreed at that juncture, that the TVC should be given 12 months to 'turn itself around' or close. The performance improvement had not happened, yet nothing had been decided. It was agreed by Members that there cannot be a continuous granting of 12-month periods for improvement. Each year the losses are increasing, and the Parishioners are paying.

Members expressed their concerns at the losses and discussed options to either improve the performance of the TVC, or to determine its future role in the community.

Several Members suggested that the building would be better employed as a small community space, for use by Parishioners. There was a belief that the Parish had to become more adept at 'looking inward', to provide for Parishioners.

Cllr Callcut stated that he did not agree with the level of losses incurred but stressed that something was needed to provide visitors with information.

Cllr Brooks suggested that a small facility could be provided in Trevena Square, where brochures and leaflets could be made available. That provision did not require a building the size of the TVC. Members agreed that the idea would meet the needs of tourists to the area.

Cllr Brooks stated that the only three viable options for the building were:

- To sell the building and re-invest the monies (minus the amount outstanding on the PWL);
- To lease the building to a third party, or;
- To use the building as a community space (this option would incur some costs).

The Clerk advised that, should the Members elect to sell the building, there would be a need to fully advertise the same and ensure that 'best value' was achieved.

Cllr Flower felt that the facility should be given a further year to operate. However, it was **agreed** that the future use of the facility would be decided at the next meeting on 1st July 2020.

<u>UPDATES</u>

• Lavatories – TVC/ Trevena Square

Minute 15- 2020/2021

The Clerk enquired about the plans to re-open the public lavatories in the village, advising the meeting that a local business owner had raised the matter with her. Cllr Pearse advised that the same person has also communicated with her on the matter.

Whilst it is accepted that there are issues which arise with the closure of the facilities, the existing set-up of the building would be deemed 'not-fit for purpose' in the current climate. Furthermore, the level of cleaning which would have to be undertaken would add further financial pressure to the Parish Council. No monies have been forthcoming from Cornwall Council, with which additional costs could be off-set.

It was **proposed** by Cllr Flower, **seconded** by Cllr Brooks and RESOLVED that the lavatories at Trevena Square and at the TVC would not be re-opened until it was safe and appropriate to do so, and that the matter would be discussed at the next meeting. Unanimous. **Carried.**

• Trevena Square Floral Display

The Clerk asked the Members what they wished her to do in relation to the hanging baskets at Trevena Square, this year. She added that, although there had been provision made in the budget, she had not yet ordered the baskets from the garden centre, due to the current lockdown situation. However, having held a brief discussion with the Handyman, it was felt that he would be able fill the baskets himself. It was **agreed** that the Handyman should be asked to provide the hanging baskets for Trevena Square this year.

CORRESPONDENCE

Trevena Square Bridge - A member of the public reported the dangerous condition of the bridge at Trevena Square, to the Parish Clerk who, in turn, reported the matter to Cornwall Council.

Despite the matter having been reported, the bridge had not been repaired prior to the last public holiday, and there were concerns that an accident could occur.

The Clerk asked the handyman to effect repairs to the same, in order to avoid injuries. We now have an invoice for the repair to send to Cornwall Council.

Tintagel Castle - The Clerk reported that she had spoken to Mr Michael Williams from English Heritage. He advised the Clerk that Tintagel Castle would open on 4th July. Tours would be on a pre-booked basis.

St Nectans' Glen – Licencing Application – The Clerk advised the meeting that she had received correspondence from the Cornwall Council Licencing Department, stating that there is to be a hearing to determine the application. This will be held by way of a 'Virtual' Hearing, to be held on Wednesday 17th June 2020 at 10.00 am. Several Councillors stated their desire to be included in the meeting and the Clerk undertook to provide them with the correspondence etc, appertaining to the same.

At 20.07 hrs, the Public Meeting ended, and members of the public absented themselves.

Minute 16 - 2020/2021

It was proposed by Cllr Flower, seconded by Cllr Brooks and RESOLVED that The meeting would move into Committee, in order to discuss the matters which were, by their very nature, confidential. Unanimous. **Carried.**

PART II Meeting

Minute 17 - 2020/2021

Acquisitions - It was proposed by Cllr Pearse, seconded by Cllr Coshall and RESOLVED that the matter would now be passed to the Parish Council's solicitor for further action. Unanimous. **Carried.**

Minute 18 - 2020/2021

Reported Matters - It was proposed by Cllr Brooks, seconded by Cllr Coshall and RESOLVED that the matter would now be raised with regulatory bodies. Unanimous. **Carried.**

The Meeting Closed at 20.32 hours

Next Meeting: Wednesday 1st July